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DEPARTMENTOF TRANSPORTATION programstolower the accidentrate due or local law to conductor otherwise
to alcohol abuse. In 1971, alcohol abuse obtain such a test, would be required if

14 CFRParts 61, 63, and 91 was a contributing cause in 12.6 percent there was a reasonable basis to believe
of the fatal ger)eral.aviation accidents, that the crewmember may have

IDocketNo.2_9S6;Amdt.NOL61-76, 63- Since then, the alcohol-related accident unlawfully used alcohol in connection
24,m_191-194] rate has declined steadily. In 1984, with his or her crewmember duties. The
Submission to Alcohol Tests alcohol abuse was involved in only 4.8 proposal also made it clear that failure

percent of the fatal general aviation to submit to the test could result in
AaENCV:Federal Aviation accidents, denial of a new certificate or a rating or
Administration {FAA), DOT. Despite this progress resulting from suspension or revocation of a certificate
ACTION:Final rule. the time and money which the FAA and or rating. In addition, civil penalty

other aviation organizations have action could be taken against the
SUMMARY:These amendments establish devoted to their educational programs, crewmember. Flight attendants, who do
rules requiring aircraft crewmembers to alcohol abuse is still unacceptably high. not hold airmancertificates, would be
submit to chemical tests for alcohol Alcohol remains a factor or cause in a subject to civil penalty action.
given by law enforcement officers under significant number of accidents each Under the proposal, the law
certain conditions. It is based, in part, year. For example, in 1979, the National enforcement officer conducting or
on the National Transportation Safety Transportation Safety Board (NTSB) obtaining the test would be acting under
Board (NTSB) determination that investigated 34 general aviation his or her own State or local authority.
alcohol is a cause or factor in a accidents where alcohol impairment The Administrator did not propose to
significant number of aircraft accidents was determined to be a cause/factor; 30 grant additional authority to State or
annually, many of which are fatal. The of the 34 accidents were fatal, local law enforcement officers. The rule
proposed amendment would facilitate On April 17, 1985, the FAA published would merely require the crewmember
the enforcement of the present alcohol a rule (Amdt. Nos. 61-74, 63--23,65-29, to cooperate with an otherwise lawful
regulations. It is intended to reduce and 91-188, 50 FR 15376} that investigation by a law enforcement
aircraft accidents and incidents established that no person may act as a officer.
attributed to consumption of alcoholic flight crewmember with a blood alcohol Fourteen comments were received as
beverages, level of .04 percent by weight or more. a result of the SNrpRM.While all the
£F_CTIVEOAT_:April 9, 1986. This rule is in addition to the current commenters support the purpose of the
FORFURTHERINFORMATIONCONTACT: § 91.11 which prohibits any person from proposed rule, some have reservations
Thomas E. Stuckey or John Lynch, acting or attempting to act as a about parts of the rule. After consideringcrewmember aboard a civil aircraft
Federal Aviation Administration, Office within 8 hours after the consumption of the comments, the FAA has decided to
of Flight Standards, General Aviation any alcoholic beverage or while under adopt the rule with some changes which _
,ind Commercia! Division, Project the influence of alcohol. This rule may are discussed below.
Development Branch (AFS-850), 800 be used to initiate enforcement action Several commenters, including the
Independence Avenue SW., NTSB, question the effectiveness of the
Washington, D.C. 20591; telephone (202] against a crewmember where witnessstatements alone are insufficient to rule until all states have "flying while
426-8150. establish a violation of the 8-hourrule or impaired" rules. At present, 37 States
SUPPLEMENTARYINFORMATION: the under-the-influence rule. The rule have such rules. The FAA recognizes

Background also requires the crewmembers to that this is a problem and will urge the
furnish theAdministrator with the remaining 13 States to enact such laws.

Rules relating to the consumption of results of any test that is performed that Enough States, however, have such laws
alcoholic beverages in connection with may indicate the percentage of alcohol now to make this rule useful. The FAA
aircraft operations are set forth in in the blood when the tests have been has discussed the proposed rule with
§ 91.11 of the federal aviation taken within 4 hours after acting or several organizations which represent
legulations {FAR)(14CFR91.11). This attempting to act as a crewmember, state aviation officials and law
section provides that no person may act Failure to furnish or authorize the enforcement officials. These groups
_,s a crewmember of acivil aircraft release of the results may lead to generally expressed support for the
within 8 hours after the consumption of sanctions, proposed rule, stating that their
any alcoholic beverage, while under the When the FAA first proposed the rule, members agree that it would be a useful
influence of alcohol, or while having a the agency intended to haveFAA tool in our collective efforts to combat
blood alcohcl level of .04 percent or representatives conduct the alcohol the use of alcohol in aviation.
more by weight, tests. After further consideration, A number of commenters raise legal

"Crewmember" is defined in Part I of however, the agency decided that it questions. One commenter asks whether
the FAR as "a person assigned to Would be impracticable to have the penalties for failing to submit to a
perform duty in an aircraft during flight representatives of the Administrator test would be mandatory or whether the
time." This includes a pilot, flight equipped and trained to carry out such ]_AA would have discretion in each
engineer, flight navigator, or flight tests. As a result, the FAA issued case. Notice 81-9A proposed making a
attendant. Supplemental Notice of Proposed refusal to submit to the test "grounds

The FAA is concerned about the Rulemaking (SNPRIvl)No. 81--9A(50 FR for" suspension or revocation of an
serious hazard, during aircraft 15381, April 17, 1985), proposing that a airman certificate. Notice 81-9A
operations, resulting from impairment of crewmember of a civil aircraft be proposed to make a person who refused
the crewmembers' faculties due to required in certain circumstances to to submit to an alcohol test ineligible for
alcohol. Even small amounts of alcohol submit to testing to indicate the a new airman certificate or type rating
affect judgment, coordination, percentage by weight of alcohol in the for a period of a year after the date of
performance, and reaction time. The blood. Under the proposal, compliance the refusal. As proposed, the FAA
FA_Aand other organizations have been with the request of a law enforcement would have had no choice but to deny
quite successful in using educational officer, who was authorized under State an applicant who had refused to submit
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to e test within the previous year. On would have to be sufficiently reliable to enforcement officer," "police officer,"
further consideration, the FAA has be used as evidence of a violation, and "peace officer." The term used in
decided it is advisable to have some Except for emergency cases, priorto the rule can be understood by the
flexibility in applying this rule. issuing the order, the FAA would give ordinary person and therefore is not
Accordingly, the rule as adopted makes the crewm_emberthe opportunity to " vague.
the _efosal to submit to the test "grounds answer the charges and be heard as to Several commenlers object that the
for" denying a new certificate or rating, why the blood alcohol level (or any FAA is delegating its authority to State
In the case of a refusal to submit to an other evidence) should not be used to and local governments. These comments
alcohol test, however, the FAA prove a violation of the alcohol rules. If reveal a fondamentalmisunderstanding
anticipates that it generally will order the FAA should use the results of a of the proposed rule. Under the proposal
the revocation of a certificate held or blood alcohol test, the crewmember in and the rule as adopted, the law
deny an application for a certificate or all cases would have the opportunity, enforcement officers will not be
rating for up to I year. during an appeal to the NTSB, to prove enforcing the FAA rules: they will be

Several commenters ask questions that the test was not reliable. This enforcing their own State and local
about the legal procedures by which the would be true if the test were used to laws. Airmen now may be subject to
rule will be enforced. Some appear to prove that the crewmember had acted or such State and local investigations. The
believe that a refusal to submit to an attempted to act as crewmember with rule will not add to or detract from the
alcohol test would result in immediate .04 percent by weight or more alcohol in States' authority; it"simply will require
suspension or revocation of the the blood in violation of § 91.11(a)(4), or crewmembers to cooperate with lawful
crewmember's airman certificate. The used,to help prove that the crewmember investigations under the stated
statutory procedures by which the FAA had acted or attempted to act as a circumstances. The final rule has been
may suspend or revoke certificates crewmember within 8 hours after the changed to make this clearer.
provide full procedural safeguards, consumption of an alcoholic beverage or Some commenters maintain that the

If a crewmember refused to submit to while under the influence of alcohol in FAA is prohibited from requiring
an alcohol test under the circumstances violation of § 91.11(a) (1) or (2). cooperation with State or local law
of this rule, the FAA could issue an " Several commenters appear to assume enforcement investigations because the
order suspending or revoking the that an alcohol test conducted as laws and procedures vary fromState to
crewmember's airman certificate, or described in this rule would be the only • State. The courts, however, have upheld
could seek to collect _Icivil penalty for kind of alcohol test that FAA might use" several Federal laws which depend in
the violation, or could deny any to prove blood alcohol levels. This is in whole or in part on the provisions of
application for a new certificate or error. The FAA has used alcohol tests in applicable State laws, which vary from
rating for up to I year after the refusal, the past to prove blood alcohol content. State to State. Forexample, the Social
or could use a combination of these The FAA will continue to use any Security Act uses the States' definitions
sanctions. In non-emergency cases, alcohol test, such as one conducted by e of husband and wife to determine
before the FAA issues an order of hospital or by a law enforcement officer, eligibility; the Federal Assimilative
suspension or revocation, it notifies the which is sufficiently reliable. For Crimes Act, dealing with crimes on
airman of the charges and gives him or instance, if a law enforcement officer Federal enclaves, adopts whatever local
her the opportunity to be heard. If, after tested a crewmember while laws apply if no Federal law exists for
this notice, the FAA issues an order of investigating a suspected violation of the crime. That various State and local
suspension or revocation, the State law not connected with aviation, laws regarding alcohol testing may be
crewmember may appeal to the NTSB the FAA could use the test if the agency different does not preclude FAA actionunder § 609 of the Federal Aviation Act had evidence to show that the test
of 1958, as amended (FA Act). If the reliably indicated the crewmember's requiring crewmembers to cooperatewith lawful investigations by State and
airman appeals to the NTSB, a non- blood alcohol level while he or she was local law officers.
emergency order does not become acting or attempting to act as a
effective unless and until the NTSB crewmember. The rule adopted here Another commenter suggests that this
affirms the FAA order. If the FAA issues deals with the circumstances under rule could hamper accident
an emergency order, the airman must which a crewmember must submit to a investigations in that law enforcement
surrender his or her certificate test or face FAA penalties. The rate officers may hold or arrest • pilot for
immediately, but may appeal to the does not limit which alcohol tests may alleged violation of State alcohol laws
NTSB and obtain an expedited review of be used to prove that the crewmember while the FAA or NTSB is investigating
his or her case. Under these violated the alcohol rules, the accident. The proposed rule,
circumstances, the NTSB must then Two commenters believe however, would make no changes in the

# complete its review within 60 days. constitutional vagueness problems exist" State or local laws or policies in this
Except for denials during suspension with the phase "law enforcement respect, so it would not affect current

' or within I year after revocation, a officer." The proposed rule referred to a practice. The FAA does not expect
person who is denied an airman "test which the officer is authorized to accident investigations to be hampered
certificate or rating may petition the obtain under state or local law." The ;. by this rule.
NTSB to review the denial under § 602 preamble identified the officer as one ' Some commenters note that, under
of the FA Act. As with all denials for who is authorized under state or local some circumstances, &f/rondo warnings
failure to meet eligibility requirements, law to conduct or otherwise obtain a must be given to people before being
the FAA does not issue a certificate to test indicating blood alcohol level. The questioned by police. Law enforcement
an applicant who it has determined is rule as adopted also identifies the law • officers give M/rondo warnings to
disqualified unless and until the NTSB enforcement officer as one who is people at certain stages in an
reverses the denial. "authorized under State or local law to investigation to inform them of their

One commenter asks whether the test conduct the test or to have the test right against self-incrimination and their
result would be deemed conclusive. As conducted." In their statues, the States right to be represented by a lawyer.
with all evidence, a breath test, urine refer to persons with this authority by Since the law enforcement officer will
test, or other test for blond alcohol level such names as "officer," "law be investigating pursuant to State end
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local laws, not FAA civil regulations, the programs the air carriers and unions A paragraph is being added to
question of Miranda warnings will be a have sponsored to treat and rehabilitate § 91.11(c} to require crewmembers to
matter of State or local prosecution, not pilots with alcoho! and drug problems, submit to alcohol tests ifa law
an FAA matter. MJmnda warnings are The FAA disd_ees..Airline and enforcement officer requests such a test.
not requiredin connection with FAA commercial pilots should not be exempt The proposed rule inferred that the law
civil,administrativeproceedings, fromalcoholrolesdirectedtowardall enforcementofficerwouldbe,atleast-in
One commenterarguesthatthe crewmembers.The FAA hasrevoked part,requestingthetestbecauseheor

proposed rule violates the Fourth pilot certificates of airline transport she suspected a violation of the FAA
Amendment to the Constitution. The pilots found to have operated passenger- alcohol rules. This is not intended. The
Fourth Amendment forbids carrying air carrier aircraft in violation proposed rule has been changed to make
unreasonable searches and seizures, of the alcohol rules. Clearly the FAA is clear that the law enforcement officer
Again, it must be emphasized that the justified in taking further steps to assist would be making the request to
officers will be acting under their State in enforcing the alcohol rules against investigate a suspected violation of
and local laws, not under FAA airline and commercial pilots. There is State or local law. The State or local law
authority. Many States have laws and no requirement or justification for would be one governing conduct the
procedures for obtaining alcohol tests awaiting a fatal accident before taking same as or substantially similar to
which have been held reasonable and corrective regulatory action. Further, conduct prohibited by the FAA's alcohol
valid under the FourthAmendment. The this role will not interfere with current rules. For instance, ff the State law
FAA rule would not affect the validity of efforts to rehabilitate pilots with alcohol prohibited reckless operation of an
these laws. or drug problems. The rule will simply aircraft, that prohibition would be

One commenter objects that the assist in obtaining evidence of deemed to include operating an aircraft
proposed rule would require the NTSB suspected violations of the alcohol roles while under the influence of alcohol,
torenderdecisionsofaquasi-criminaland,theagencyexpects,willalsoassist becausesuchconductisreckless.A
nature without adequate due process in deterring such violations, crewmember who was being
safeguards and states that the NTSB Three commenters, including two investigated by a law enforcement
does not have the authority to render flight attendant unions, object to the officer for suspected flying under the
such decisions. The enforcement of FAA .inclusion of flight attendants in this rule. influence of alcohol in violation of therules is a civil matter, not criminal. The
existing statutory requirements and They state that flight attendants have State's reckless flying law would benever been the cause of aviation required, under this "rule,to submit to an
procedural rules provide the process accidents. In addition, they point out alcohol test on request of the lawthat is due for such civil actions.

One commenter contends that the that, since flight attendants are not officer.
alcohol rule is an implied consent law certificated, the FAA can only use civil The purpose of this rule is to requirepenalties under this rule. As submission to a test only when the test
that must be legislated and cannot be crewmembers who have important may help indicate whether theinstituted by rulemaking but cites no
authority for this argument. The FAA safety responsibilities, flight attendants crewrnember has violated FAA roles. A
has adequate authority, under the FA should not be under the influence of crewmember's failure to submit to a test

drugs or alcohol while on duty. Flight requested by a law enforcement officer
Act, to issue this rule to promote safety attendants have been included in § 91.11 under circumstances not described inin sir commerce and the public interest.
This is especially so in light of studies of the FAR since it was first adopted, this rule will be dealt with only by State
conclusively proving that the Their inclusion in this final rule is or local authorities, not by the FAA.
consumption of even small amounts of consistent with the purpose of the Regulatory Evaluation
alcohol impairs a crewmember's ability regulation.
to performrequisite duties. Two commenters want the blood These rules will serve as enforcement

One commenter voices concern that alcohol content to be lowered to 0.0 tools. They will have no economic
the rule would infringe on the privacy of percent. These concerns are being given impact on crewmembers who are not
airmen and cause public humiliation, consideration in another project and are suspected of failing to comply with the
The investigation by the law not within the scope of this rulemaking, alcohol rules, The burden on those who
enforcement officer will be conducted One commenter wants the FAA to will be requested to submit to an alcohol
under State or local laws and substitute for the proposed rules a . test will consist of a brief period of time
procedures, not FAA-required program to educate crewmembers about spent undergoing the test. The time
procedures. The law enforcement officer the danger of flying while impaired. The spent by the crewmember while'being
will be subject to State and local laws FAA agrees that education of detained by the law enforcement officer
and policies regarding privacy. All FAA crewmembers about alcohol and drug during the on-site investigation will not
enforcement investigations adhere to abuse is important and has for years be changed by these amendments. The
statutes, departmental rules, and FAA conducted Seminars and distributed yarious States and municipalities that
guidelines regarding privacy. The FAA pamphlets on these dangers, but the enforce their own "flying while
will issue guidelines to its inspectors to rules adopted here must also be in force intoxicated" laws would require this
assist them in enforcing this rule, and to assist the FAA in identifying those detention anyway, so no additional time
will include guidance to protect privacy, who do violate the alcohol rules, is being required by these amendments.

Since these roles will have no impact onSeveral commenters raise questions Sections Affectedabout which crewmembers should be crewmembers, a regulatory evaluation is
subject to the rule. Three commenters, Sections 61.16 and 63,12a are being not warranted.
representing air carrier pilots, oppose revised to make a refusal to submit to an Conclusion
the inclusion of airline pilots under this alcohol test that is requested by a law
rule on two grounds: (I) No airline enforcement officer under the terms of a These amendments will enhance
accident has been traced to an alcohol- new § 91.11(c)(I) grounds for suspension aviation safety by providing an
impaired pilot in over 2.0years; {2) the or revocation of a certificate or denial of additional enforcement tool and by
rule might hamper the voluntary a certificate or rating, adding additional deterrence to flying in
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violation of the FAA's alcohol rules. The alcohol in the blood, Whenrequested by Authority: 49 U.S.C.1301{7),1303, 1344.
agencyexpectsthatthesechangeswill alawenforcementofficerinaccordance 1348.1352through1355,1401,1421through
reduceaviationaccidentsandsave with § g1.11(c}ofthischapter,ora 1431,1471,1472.1502.1510,1522,and2121
lives. Compliance with this amendment refusal tOfurnish or authorize the through 2145:Articles12,29,31,and 32{a} of
will have no economic impact on release of'the test results requested by theConventionof InternationalCivil
crewmembers.Accordingly,ithasbeen theAdministratorinaccordancewith Aviation{61Stat.1180l;42U.S.C.4321etseq.:
determinedthatthisisnotamajor §91.11{c}or{d}ofthischapter,is E.O.1151¢and49U.S.C,106{8}{Revised,
regulationunderExecutiveOrder12291. groundsfor-= Pub.L 97-449;,January12.1983}.

However,becauseofthepublicinterest {a}Denialofanapplicationforany 6.By amending§91.11by revising
inthisaction,thisamendmentis certificateorratingissuedunderthis paragraph{c}toreadasfollows:
significantunderDepartmentof partforaperiodofuptoIyearafterthe
Transportation Regulatory Policies and date of that refusal; or §91.11 Alcohol or drugs.
Procedures (44 FIR11034; February 26, {b}Suspension or revocation of any .....
1979}. Since this amendment will have certificate or rating issued under this
nocostimpact,Icertifythatunderthe part. (c}A crewmembershalldothe
criteriaoftheRegulatoryFlexibilityAct, following:
theseruleswouldnothaveasignificantPART 63--CERTIFICATION: (I}On requestofalawenforcement
economicimpacton smallentities.A full CREWMEMBERS OTHER THAT officer,submittoa testtoindicatethe
regulatoryevaluationhasnotbeen PILOTS percentagebyweightofalcoholinthe
preparedbecausetheseamendments blood,when--
willhavenocostimpact. 3.The authoritycitationforPart63is {i}The lawenforcementofficerisrevisedtoreadasfollows:

authorizedunderStateorlocallaw to
Listof Subjects Authority:49U.S.C.1354(a}. 1355.1421, conductthe testor to have the test
14 CFR Port 61 1422.1427,1429.and 1430;and 49U.S.C. conducted;and

106{8}{Revised,Pub.L.97-449:January12.
Airmen,Alcoholanalcoholic 1983}. {it}The lawenforcementofficeris

beverages,Aviationsafety. 4.By revising§63.i2atoreadas requestingsubmissiontothetestto
14CFR Port63 follows: investigateasuspectedviolationof

Stateorlocallawgoverningthesame or
Aircraft, Airmen, Aviation safety. §63.1211 Refusal to submit to an alcohol substantially similar conduct prohibited

14CFR Part91 testortofurnishteatresults, byparagraph{a){l).(a){2),or (a){4)of

Airmen,Aviationsafety,Liquor. A refusaltosubmittoatestto thissection.
indicatethepercentageby weightof (2}WhenevertheAdministratorhasa

AdoptionofthisAmendment alcoholintheblood,when requestedby reasonablebasistobelievethata
Accordingly,Parts61,63,and91ofthe alaw enforcementofficerinaccordance personmay haveviolatedparagraph

FederalAviationRegulations{14CFR with|91.11{c}ofthischapter,ora {aS{l},{a}{2},or{a}{4)ofthissection,that
61,63,and91)areamendedasfollows: refusaltofurnishorauthorizethe personshall,uponrequestbythe

releaseofthetestresultswhen Administrator,furnishthe
PART61--,CERTIFICATION:PILOTS requested by the Administrator in Administrator. or authorize any clinic.
AND FLIGHT INSTRUCTORS accordancewith § 91.11{c} or {d) of this hospital, doctor, or other person to

1. The authority citation for Part 61 is chapter, is grounds form release to the Administrator, the results
revised to read as follows: {a} Denial of an application for any of each test taken within 4 hours after

certificate or rating issued under this acting or attempting to act as a
Authority: 49U.S.C.1354{a}. 1355.1421, part.for a period of up to 1 year after the crewuncmber that indicates percentage

1422. 1427, 1429, and 1430;, and 49 U.S.C. date of that refusal; or
106{g){Revised,Pub.L 97-449:January12, (b} Suspension or revocation of any by weight of alcohol in the blood.
1983}. certificate or rating issued under this .....

2. By revising § 61.16 to read as part. Issuedin Washington.D.C..on January2,
follows: 19s6.

PART91_GENERAL OPERATINGAND DonaldD.Engen,
§ 61.16 Refusal to submit to an alcohol FLIGHT RULEStrodor to furnishtest results. Administrator.

A refusalto submitto a testto 5.The authority citationforPart 91 is [FR Dec.86-415Filed1-8-86:8:45amJ
indicate the percentage by weight of revised to read as follows: mu.s_ coe_ 4s_o-_-M

o

#,
#


